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[bookmark: _GoBack]A student killed by forces from Balpora camp, where he was detained last year

The Informative Missive	1	June 2017

June 07: Eighteen-year-old, student, Adil Farooq Magray, son of Farooq Ahmad, resident of Balpora village in Shopian district was shot dead by the armed forces during cordon and search operation. A joint contingent of army and SOG conducted searches of Ganawpora village Balpora village. During the search operation forces were accused of beating people and ransacking property, which triggered protests. While people were protesting, armed forces targeted Adil with bullets, one of which killed him.  Govt. has ordered a probe into the killing, which people alleged was intentional.     
	Adil was perusing graduation in Degree College Shopian. 
Adil was killed by the forces from Balpora camp where last year he was detained and beaten for a day. 
	The police claim that people started protesting immediately after the search operation to help militants to escape was rejected by the people saying the protests were against the armed forces highhandedness.   [image: ]
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	To collect the case details a researcher of The Informative Missive visited Adil’s village where he talked to the family of the victim. The details shared by the family say Adil was not part of protests and was just standing watching people protest.  
	Adil’s uncle, Abdul Rashid Magray talked at length with The Informative Missive sharing the details of the incident in which the youth was shot dead. 
“On June 7, around 6 pm army from Balpora camp along with SOG, Shopian laid a cordon and search operation of Ganawpora village. During the searches the forces indulge in ransacking and beating people. Many houses were ransacked and the household items destroyed. This was when people assembled to protests the forces highhandedness,” the uncle stated while giving the details of how the protests started in the village. “Adil was standing just outside his house not protesting but silently watching.”

	The forces action angered the people to the extent that some of the youth pelted stones on armed forces vehicle. The people’s reaction further worsens the situation and the forces engaged in search operation opened fire. 
	“It was around 7:30 in the evening when armed forces opened fire. At that time, Adil was standing just outside his house not protesting but silently watching. There was a sizeable distance between him and the protesters. When the forces spotted him, they fired bullets at him. One of the bullets precisely hit his heart. He fell down there,” stated Rashid Magray.
	When his uncle Mohammad Abbas saw his nephew lying on the ground with blood everywhere around him, Abbas without caring about the situation took his nephew to the Sub District Hospital. 
“Actually, he had died on the spot. Taking him to the hospital was just a medical formality. He was declared brought dead by the doctors. How come a person survives whose heart got punctured by the bullet,” stated Rashid. 
It was the month of Ramadan and the time for breaking the fast was just minutes away. At the time of the incident Adil was on fast. In fact he had made certain arrangement for breaking his fast in advance. Little did he know he will die as a Rozdaar (on fasting).
To protest Adil’s killing people of Shopian and Pulwama districts observed a complete shutdown for two days. 
Last year, Adil was picked by the forces of the Balpora camp. He was picked from the roadside.  For a day, he was kept in the camp where he was beaten.  In the evening some village elders along with Adil’s father visited the camp and got the boy released. In the camp he was beaten for unknown reasons. He was often complaining of pain in his head which was a result of the army’s beating. Since then army’s fear has gripped Adil and even thinking of protest for him was unimaginable.
“We can’t say with surety whether the same soldiers killed him who detained and beat him last year but the forces who killed him came from the same camp where he was detained. The last year’s arrest and torture by the forces has injected deep fear in him. He was least interested in protests. The forces have no justification, whatsoever to kill him,” stated Abdul Rashid.   
Govt. ordered probe: 
On June 08, a magisterial inquiry under Section 176 CrPC was ordered into the killing of Adil Farooq by the Shopian district magistrate. “Assistant Commissioner Revenue Shopian has been appointed as inquiry officer to ascertain the circumstances, which led to the death of Adil Farooq on June 07 evening,” the DM’s order said.
The enquiry officer has been asked to submit his report within 25 days.
Police also filed an FIR, however, the family is yet to receive the copy of it. Police many a times called Adil’s family to visit police station but they chose not to do.  


Bullet rips youth neck dies on way to hospital
His mother turns traumatic

On June 22, family of Tawseef Ahmad Lone received a phone call from a friend informing their son was critically injured in armed forces firing in Kakapora village of Pulwama district. The news came as a shock to the family. The youth was shot on right side of his neck. In the armed forces firing, many other youths were also injured, after an encounter was over in which three LET militants were killed.  Tawseef injury was grave and he died on way to the hospital.
Tawseef son of Ghulam Hassan of Nagpur, Tengpuna, Pulwama was one more addition to the list of people killed near encounter sites this year.   Tawseef killing turned his mother traumatic, who spend most of her time in isolation. The mother avoids any talk about her deceased son. The moment she did that she feels chocked and suffocated and her heart start racing.  
A researcher of The Informative Missive visited Tawseef’s house to collect the details of the incident which costs Tawseef’s life. Tawseef’s mother was reluctant to relate any details regarding her son, as doing so disturbs her mentally. After long persuasion she agreed to share details of the incident as long as her conditions remain stable. 
The mother, in her mid-fifties, said she had no idea how Tawseef reached to the place of encounter. “I had no idea how he reached to the place of incident. Three militants were killed that day and people had assembled to perform their last rites, however, the forces assailed the people’s gathering by using bullets, pellets and teargas shells,” the mother stated while her body was trembling persistently. “We had no idea about the incident till we received a phone”

In the forces action over twenty people were injured including Tawseef. “They (forces) shot many people and my son was shot in his neck, leaving his survival chances very minimal. We had no idea about the incident till we received a phone call at 11:30 am informing about the incident,” the traumatic mother stated as her eyes started filling with tears.  
On that fateful day at around 9 am Tawseef had left his home to Kakapora where he was working with a construction contractor for some time. He was driving JCB bulldozer for the contractor.  After the encounter was over people from different areas went towards Kakapora to perform the last rites of the slain militants. “He might have gone there (site of encounter) with other people as he was quite emotional persons. It was then the retreating forcing had fired towards youth in which my son also received bullet,” the lady stated.  
The caller, Tawseef’s family friend, who had called on his uncle Gulzar Ahmad over the phone about the incident asked him to reach to the Pulwama Health Centre as the condition of the boy was critical. 
“When the family reached the Pulwama Health Center he was already taken to Pampore Health Center. Before we reached the Pampore Health Center he was already declared dead by the doctors there. In fact, he had died while being taken to the centre,” the mother stated while she struggled in continuing her statement as her trembling intensifies.    
	The family was not sure specifically which armed forces agency killed the boy as there were personnel of army, police and CRPF present there.  
 	Tawseef’s father Ghulam Hassan passed away in 2014. Tawseef has five siblings, two brothers and three sisters, and being sensitive he came forward to take family responsibilities. In him the family lost a bread winner. 
So far the family has not filed FIR nor have the police approached them for recording any statement about Tawseef’s killing. “We have apprehension that if we go to police for filing of FIR we may face retribution from the perpetrators. This fear prevents us from approaching the police,” Tawseef sister, who was supporting her mother while making statement, stated.
The family has no idea what to do in Tawseef’s killing case. The sister further stated, “We are ignorant people with very little resources and taking a legal recourse against the perpetrators is something appears to be out of our reach. We want people responsible for killing our boy punished for what they had done to us. But we have our limitations.” 
“See our mother’s conditions. She is not keeping well since Tawseef was killed. We don’t know what will happen to her in coming days. She has lost all her strength to cope up with the tragedy. She is taking solace in prayers,” the sister concluded.       

Mohamad Ashraf Khar received bullet while performing ablution 

Mohammad Ashraf Khar, the 26-year-old load carrier driver of Kharpora Arwani, left home to offer Friday prayers only to return dead. He was killed during an encounter between militants and government forces in Arwani village of Anantnag district on Friday. His killing further swell up the list of people killed near encounter locations. 
“Ashraf had lost his mother when he was only two-and-a-half-year old. Since then I have been the father and mother to him. Only I know how I brought him up all these years. His brother too would never let him work much at home. To both of us he was that same kid whom we used to feed by our own hands,” says Ashraf’s father, Ghulam Hassan Khar.
In the corner of a tent erected for the mourners in the courtyard of Khar’s house, Sabzar Ahmed Khar, Ashraf’s elder brother, is inconsolable and on the mention of his younger brother he breaks down.
Ashraf had returned home at around 12 noon after bringing an auto load of vegetables from Anantnag vegetable market, which now lies in the alley near their house. His father had asked Ashraf to bring the kids of his elder brother from the school as the encounter had started in the nearby Arwani village which had led to spontaneous shutdown across south Kashmir.
“Ashraf brought his nephews from school in a jiffy and changed his clothes saying he was going to offer Friday prayers now. That was the last time I saw him,” recounts his father.
According to eyewitnesses, Ashraf was shot dead while he was performing ablution for Friday prayers near Jamia Masjid in Batpora Arwani.
“He was shot in the back on the bank of a river while doing ablution and he tumbled into it. Had the other youth present at the spot not seen him, he would have been swept away by the water current. A youth dragged his body away from there after which he was rushed to a nearby hospital,” said one of Ashraf’s friends.
Ashraf was rushed to Anantnag hospital where he was declared brought dead by doctors.
Ashraf’s wife, Mehvish is in a state of shock and has not spoken a word since his death. She had come home on Friday for the first time after delivering their baby 40 days back. Ukash, 40-day old son of Ashraf could only spend few moments with his father at their home.
Ashraf and Mehvish had married in May last year.
Ashraf was a 10th class dropout. He was a hardworking person and was able to buy a load carrier from his own savings, said one of his friends.

Injured Ajaz Ahmed Malik died in hospital 
June17: A civilian who was injured after unknown gunmen opened fire upon him in south Kashmir’s Pulwama district late June 16 night succumbed to his injuries.
Ajaz Ahmed Malik (24) son of Ali Mohammad, resident of Arrubagh Pinglana in Pulwama who received bullet injuries after unknown gunmen opened fire on him near his residence succumbed to his injuries at Srinagar hospital, a senior police officer told media.
Malik had received bullet in right side of abdomen and was immediately shifted to District Hospital Pulwama where from he was referred to Srinagar hospital in critical condition. He succumbed to his injuries late Saturday night.
Victim  Ajaz Ahmad was a mason by profession.

Army fires on car in Bandipora, 2 civilians injured

June 16: Two civilians were injured when army allegedly opened fire on their car in Bandipora district of north Kashmir Friday.
Witnesses said that the civilians were heading towards Ahamsharief shrine for Friday prayers when  they came under fire at a barricade erected by soldiers of 14 RR Unit in Chek Reshipora village of the district.
Both the injured were shifted to District Hospital Bandipora for treatment where from they were shifted to SKIMS Soura for specialised treatment.
They were identified as Muzaffar Ahmad son of Farooq Ahmad Jan and Fayaz Ahmad Haji son of Ghulam Hassan Haji, both resident of Qazipora village in Bandipora.
“Fayaz was shot in his left knee and Muzaffar was shot on his left shoulder. However, there condition was stable,” said a doctor who treated them at DH Bandipora.
Police registered a case under Section 307 RPC against army. When contacted, Srinagar based Defence Spokesman Col. Rajesh Kalia said that he is ascertaining the details about the incident.

Civilian injured in highway shootout: Police

Police on June 10 said that a civilian was injured when militants targeted the government forces at Vesu in south Kashmir’s Anantnag district on the Srinagar-Jammu highway.
In a statement, a Police spokesman said: “A civilian Meenu Arif, an Engineer with Hindustan Construction Company (HCC) in Banihal, was injured after militants missed the target and hit his car.”
Arif, according to the spokesman, said that he was on way to Banihal from his home in Anantnag town when unknown militants fired upon two forces’ vehicles moving ahead of his car (No. JK02BJ 6600).  "The fire missed the target and hit his car and he was injured in the back," said the spokesman.
"About 20 empty cases of AK ammunition have been recovered from the spot. A case has been registered and investigation taken up," added the spokesman.
Arif, 45, is a resident of Bakshiabad locality of Anantnag town.
	Doctors in SMHS told media that Arif has sustained fire arm injury in abdomen and has been operated upon. “His condition is stable,” they added. 




Masooda’s body endure four hundred pellets, each pellet 9 cm deep  

Mathematically four hundred pellets were pumped into Masooda’s body by police when she was on her way to consult a doctor on July 10, 2016 in Dabrun, a village south Kashmir’s Anantnag district. At that time, there was no protest or even sloganeering happening in the area. Policemen deployed there to choke protests, erupted after Burhan Wani’s killing, fired volley of pellets soon they spotted her along with her husband Feroz Ahmad, an auto-rickshaw driver. Her husband also received pellets.  
A team of The Informative Missive went to Dabrun to meet Masooda to know how she was targeted with the pellets. Masooda readily spoke about the incident and made a detailed following statement: “I assumed that they wouldn’t harm me but would definitely attack my husband. So I pushed him away and while I fell down. As I fell down, I felt a deep burning sensation in my back”


I have a problem of high blood pressure and on this day, I was on my way to the doctor with my husband. We went out from the main road but since there was protest procession there, we took a diversion through an alley. As we reached the end of the alley, we saw three policemen there. When they saw us, they immediately pointed their guns at our direction. I assumed that they wouldn’t harm me but would definitely attack my husband. So I pushed him away and while I fell down. As I fell down, I felt a deep burning sensation in my back and then saw a Kashmir Police personnel beating me up with a lathi. They had fired me with a pellet gun. In that movement, my only thoughts were that these policemen wouldn’t flinch from molesting me. So I got up and ran towards a neighbour’s house.  When I entered inside the gate, one of the policemen thrust his lathi into the gate, preventing me from locking the door and wanting to enter inside the premises. Luckily for me, a boy came from inside the house. Together, we pushed the policeman’s lathi out and locked the gate. I could feel an excruciating burning sensation on my back and I feel unconscious. 
I was rushed to the hospital on a street vendor’s cart. The people taking me to the hospital were attacked and the cart was destroyed by the CRPF.  Then a police officer who is popular by the name “dabang” took me to Anantnag hospital in his official jeep. In the hospital, I was referred to Srinagar. But the boys who were with me protested and insisted that I be treated in Anantnag itself as I had already lost a lot of blood. 
My husband had also received pellet injuries and since pellets in his body were also very deep, they could not be removed.  In my body, pellets were 9 centimetres deep. At one point we were admitted in the hospital together. There are about 400 pellets in my body. 
We did not file FIR. I was admitted in the hospital for seven days after which I was discharged since there was a risk of contracting infections as the hospital was over loaded with patients. But my family had to face many problems to ensure that my wounds are dressed every day. The police and CRPF would stop us from going to the doctor even though I would have my prescriptions on me. Later, I got prescriptions for a BP problem and only then would they let me go. Such was their behaviour with the injured people that if they saw my prescription for pellet injuries, they would prevent me from seeing the doctor. 
Right now, I am healing but I have about 400 pellets in my body. Each pellet is about 9 centimetres deep, since I was shot at from a very close range. Three pellets from my arm have been removed but it took about 3 hours and I received eight stitches and lost a lot of blood. I cannot remove any more pellets from my body since it will mean losing blood and self-inflicted injury. 
We have not received any threats from anyone but we are suffering. My husband is an auto riskshaw driver and is not able to put in many hours of work since he also received many pellet injuries on his back and this has affected his health badly. I have four daughters and we must strive to live for them. 

Pellets make holes in both eyes of 60-year-old Sopore man

June 22: A 60-year-old man was among the seven people who suffered injuries in their eyes due to pellet ammunition fired by the government forces in the past 24 hours during protests in Pulwama and Sopore areas.
Ghulam Mohammad Mir, a farmer, suffered pellet injuries in both eyes at Sopore.
Mir lies on his bed, calm, yet alert, as if trying to make sense of the sounds in the ward. Both his eyes are bandaged.
Doctors said pellets have made holes in his eyes and such injuries have been seen to cause vision loss in the victims.
 	“These injuries are serious,” a senior ophthalmologist at the SMHS Hospital said.
Mir, his son Showkat Ahmed said, was injured in the morning when the local residents approached the government forces to demand the body of the two militants who had been killed in a gunfight at Pazalpora area of Sopore a few hours earlier.
One of the militants belonged to Mir’s area, Showkat said.
“Elders were in the first row of procession that was demanding the body and we never thought they will fire at elders too,” Showkat said.
 	“What was the fault of my father? Neither him nor anyone else pelted stones that time. There were just slogans. Nothing more,” he said.
Besides Mir, two more persons suffered pellet injuries in Sopore and four others in Kakapora, Pulwama district. All have been admitted to the SMHS Hospital for specialised treatment.
Doctors said the degree of blindness caused by pellets varies from person to person and depends on the area of the eye that has been hit.
“If the pellets have injured a vital visual area, such as retina or macula there are very bleak chances of the person getting his vision back,” an eye surgeon at SMHS Hospital said.
On June 22, four youths from Kakapora in Pulwama district were admitted to the SMHS Hospital.
 “We continue to admit people with eye injuries caused by pellets. These injuries cause blindness,” doctors at the hospital said.

Twice widowed, Zareefa fighting odd battles of life

Middle-aged, Zareefa Begum has been twice widowed. Both of her husbands were killed by the army, one after another and passed as militants. Hailing from far of Devar village of Kupwara district in north Kashmir, she is now taking care of her six orphan children. Having no land or any property to earn from, she went to the forests to collect a particular herbal plant and firewood, and sell it to make her both ends meet. One of her sons was suffering from mental ailment.  Her house and shop were destroyed in fire set by army to pressure her in-laws to reveal details of her brother-in-law, a militant. Police has misled the SHRC, where a case was filed, by submitting a “false report” declaring her second husband a militant.  [image: ]
Zareefa at JKCCS office

Zareefa has no calculation of dates when her husbands were killed. She was not supported by her memory, despite she tried hard to dig the dates and years of the tragedies. The meticulously compiled official documents she was carrying of her second husband’s killing showed that her second husband was killed on November 21, 1995. “The poverty could have killed me and my children had I not timely married with Aziz Khan.”


Zareefa’s first husband Asif Khan was killed by army along with another man Zakir Khan in early 1990s. While talking to The Informative Missive Zareefa said, “the news of Asif’s killing came as shock to us and more shockingly he was passed as militant by the army. The army claimed that Asif and another person Zakir Khan were killed while exflitraring to Pakistan Administered Kashmir.”
	She further stated, whatever the army claimed was only to justify its lie. “Who else could know better than me that Asif was not a militant. He was merely a labourer and nothing else. He was killed by the army reasons best known to them,” Zareefa stated.    
Then Zareefa has four minor children from Asif Khan. 
To better her and her children’s conditions after couple of years she married with Aziz Khan. “The poverty could have killed me and my children had I not timely married with Aziz Khan. Aziz Khan was kind hearted and never differentiates between children, three sons and a daughter, from my first husband and his own children. Then one from me and two were from his first wife,” she stated while explaining Aiziz’s persona.
Aziz Khan was running a provisional store in Devar, just outside his house, and was earning good. In November 1995 Aziz Khan went to Sopore to buy stock for his shop. There he was arrested by 13 Raj Rif {army} and his bullet ridden body was thrown at Keunusa, Sopore. To cover its crime the army filed a misleading FIR in police station Sopore U/S 307, 27/25 of IA Act clamming Aziz was killed in an encounter with army.  
“I strongly believe and have testified before SHRC that my husband was killed for money. He was carrying an amount of Rs. 80,000 at the time of his arrested followed by his killing by the army. He was neither a militant nor a political worker. I reiterate, his killing was associated with the money he was carrying at that time,” Zareefa averred while blaming the army for killing his husband. 
Zareefa was 6 month pregnant at the time of Aziz’s killing. “After three months of Aziz’s killing I gave birth to another son,” she stated.
After sometime, perhaps after 2 to 3 years, army burnt down Aziz’s house and shop to pressure his family to share the whereabouts of Aziz’s younger brother Vilayat Khan, a militant. The family has no idea of Vilayat’s whereabouts. Till Vilayat Khan was killed in an encounter, there was continuous harassment from the army. 
The situation around her was very bad and abject poverty coerced her to send her minor children Rizwan and Jaffar sons of Aziz Khan to orphanages at Srinagar. “I have no property. No land. Nothing. The main source of income to the family was from the shop, which was reduced to ashes by the army. I had no option but to separate my small children and send them to two different orphanages with the help of villagers,” Zareefa stated while sharing the situation she faces after Aziz’s killing. 
At home, Zareefa has two children to take care of. They were from Aziz’s first wife Begam Noorie after whose death Aziz married Zareefa. Aziz also has an adopted child Salim Khan. Salim was adopted from a non-local, a Bihari woman. Aziz has adopted him when he was only few months old.  
Zareefa filed a restitution case before the Deputy Commissioner’s office about her house and shop damage case. “The DC sanctioned Rs. 16000 compensation in the case of shop only, half of which I have to pay a person who helped me in perusing the case,” Zareefa stated. 
Salim Khan secretly after an understanding with a local lawyer had moved an application before the State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) for compensation. “I had no idea about the SHRC case till I was asked to depose before it. Salim Khan without telling me has filed a case before the commission, however, he left it half way due to cumbersome process involved in it,” the lady stated. 
Now Zareefa is in possession of the records of her husband’s killing given to her by Aziz’s son from his first wife Attaullah, serving in police. Attaullah told her to peruse the case, as there were chances of compensation or a job which can better her financial conditions. 
While wading through the records compiled by Zareefa a police report dated 29-12-2006 submitted to SHRC rejected the contents in application submitted to the SHRC by Salim Khan. The report further declared Aziz Khan as accused and also recovery of army ammunition was claimed. The report also mentioned FIR No. 578/95 U/S  307 RPC 27 IA. Act registered in Sopore police station.
Zareefa, when asked about this police report, said, police can say anything. She said, “There was no truth in police report. Whatever has mentioned in it was a bundle if lies. It appears the report was made after some understanding between police and the actual perpetrators. It is shocking that the report has named my husband as an accused/militant.” 
There was no improvement in her financial conditions. Her younger son Jaffar suddenly lost his mental balance. “I am still unable to understand what has happed to Jaffar. He was sharp at studies and an agile boy. Good at everything. He lost his mental balance when he was studying in 9th standard. Even doctors were unable to treat him properly. Despite taking lot of medicines, there were no signs of improvement in him,” Zareefa said while relating her younger son’s conditions who is mentally sick. 
Zareefa was quite eager to take up Aziz Khan’s case. She said due to responsibility limitations, she was unable to take legal course in her husband Aziz’s case. Not only she few other people had deposed before the SHRC. She identified the witnesses as Chowkidar Khazir Mohammad (now dead), Lumberdar Lasa Naik (now dead), Mir Alam Khan, Sarpanch Manzoor Khan were names of people who recorded their statements before the SHRC. 
“Everybody knows that Aziz was not a militant. Even the army who killed him knows well that they had killed a civilian and not a militant,” Zareefa concludes. 

Teenage students of Darul Uloom ‘ruthlessly beaten’ by army

June 15: Two teenage students of Darul Uloom Sawa-us-Sabeel in Kulgam district were beaten up by army soldiers on February 14 night, the Darul Uloom administration told Kashmir Reader.
The two students, Hafiz Hamidul Islam, 15, and Hafiz Shehzad Ahmad, 14, were “ruthlessly beaten” by army soldiers when they were returning from a local mosque where they had gone to lead Taraweeh prayers, the authorities said.
They said both the students are receiving education in an Islamic course and have memorised the holy Quran.
“During the holy month of Ramzan we send our students who have memorised the holy Quran to lead Taraweeh prayers at different local mosques,” said Mushtaq Ahmad, editor of Mubalig magazine published by the Darul Uloom.
He said the duo was returning from the mosque in village Batsragam in a load carrier, when army soldiers intercepted them at main Chowk Khandipora at about 10:45pm on Wednesday.
“After checking their identity cards, the soldiers took away their mobile phones and without any provocation started beating them,” said Mushtaq.
He said that after beating the students, the soldiers returned their mobile phones.
The Darul Uloom administration demanded stringent action against the army soldiers who assaulted their students.
“The beating has also taken a toll on their mental health,” said a teacher.
Srinagar-based army spokesperson Colonel Rajesh Kalia, media reported, denied allegations that army has beaten the youth. 

Youth “framed” for reporting atrocities 

June 02: The family of Inayat Akbar Parray of Hajin in north Kashmir’s district Bandipora staged protest demonstration at Press Enclave in Srinagar, refuting police allegations that Parray was a Lashkar-e-Toiba handler.
The family and relatives of Parray said that police harassment forced him to go underground. They were holding a banner which read: “Militants are not born but are created by police.”
They alleged that police arrested five family members of Inayat Parray and kept them in lock up for 20 days.
“Two family members including the father of Inayat have been released while his two brothers and cousin are still in lock up. Police is asking us to produce Inayat before the police,” said Masrat, sister of Inayat.
Haleema Bano, the mother of Inayat, said that her son is being harassed by police.
“The police frequently used to call my son to police stations even though he was associated with media and had nothing to do with militants. His only fault was that he highlighted the brutalities of police in the district,” she said and termed the police allegations baseless.
“In a bid to force my son to appear before police, my two sons and their cousin are still languishing in lock up. We appeal police to release them and allow my son to live a peaceful life. Please don’t push my son to the wall and force him to join militant ranks,” Haleema told media.
She said it is disgusting on part of police to claim that her son has been absconding from October 20, 2016.
“Till May 15, 2017, when police raided our house, my son Inayat was at home. Police are manipulating facts and trying to push my son towards militancy,” she said vehemently refuted the allegations that her son is an Over Grounder Worker of militant outfit Lashkar-e-Toiba.
 Bandipora police June 1 had claimed to have busted a Lashkar-e-Toiba module by arresting five alleged Over Ground Workers (OGW’s) in Hajin area “handled by Inayat Akbar Parrey” who is stringer with a New Delhi based news channel for Bandipora district.

More Videos Showing Army Atrocities 

June 28: Two new videos of army soldiers beating Kashmiri youth have gone viral on social media in the Valley. The videos appear to have been shot by the army men themselves. One of them has been filmed from inside a Casper army vehicle and the other from a position on the road. Locations where the videos were shot are yet to be ascertained.
The first video is 4 minutes and 6 seconds long. It shows at least two army soldiers using large canes to ruthlessly thrash a youth.
From the conversation heard in the video, one can make out that the soldiers have checked the youth’s phone and are infuriated at finding a video of slain Hizb commander Burhan Wani in it.
“Tera Baap Hai Burhan? (Is Burhan your father?),” the army men ask the youth, shouting expletives and continuously beating the youth with their canes. They are also heard threatening to smash the youth’s skull if he tries to avoid the lathi (baton) blows.
The army men are seen getting more infuriated with the youth when they find the Holy Quran in his phone. They are heard using abusive language while asking the youth the purpose for keeping the Holy Quran in his phone.
The youth, wearing a pink shirt, can be seen pleading with the army men to let him go as he is observing a fast. The men in uniform, however, keep beating him for the entire length of the video, also threatening to take him “inside”, apparently referring to their camp.
Another 2-minute 21-second video filmed from inside an army vehicle shows a youth, bearded and wearing a blue shirt, saying “I love my India” as army men (not entirely visible) prompt him to chant louder.
“You should say it with the vigour you throw stones with,” the army men can be heard saying, while slapping, pulling and abusing the boy.
An army man is even heard suggesting that they should shoot the boy and label him as a militant.
“Militant list mein daalna hai iska photo goli maar ke,” “put his name in the militant list and shoot him” an army man can be heard saying. The men are also heard discussing among themselves whether they should upload the video on Facebook.
This video seems to be a recent one, shot during the month of Ramadan, as an army man beating the boy can be heard accusing the youth of getting drunk in the evening after fasting for the day.
For most part of the video, the youth is forced to chant Pakistan Murdabad and Hindustan Zindabad, the army men not even allowing him to catch breath.
Defense spokesperson, Rajesh Kalia told media that the veracity of the videos was being ascertained by the army.
These videos have surfaced after at least three videos, including the infamous “Human Shield” one, did rounds of social media in Kashmir in April this year.
While other videos have went unaccounted for, the Budgam “Human Shield” video was not only accepted by the army but Major Gogoi who used a civilian as human shield was backed by none other than Indian Army chief, General Bipin Rawat.
The fresh videos are being widely shared on Facebook and WhatsApp. Questions are also being asked of the motive of leaking such videos, for they have apparently been shot by army men themselves.



Kashmiris Harassment outside

The harassment and assaults continues against Kashmiris in Indian states, this month’s assault on a Kashmiri journalist re-confirms the vulnerability and dangers the Kashmiris face. This latest assault incident further exposes the failure of state government in ensuring safety to Kashmiris. A lot has been talked about the measures taken by the government to put an end to unabated harassment of Kashmiris living in Indian states, however, on the ground things seems unchanged and even getting worse in recent months.   
· Kashmiri journalist assaulted in Delhi
June 19: A Kashmiri journalist Basit Malik who writes for Caravan Magazine, has been assaulted allegedly by Hindu fanatics for being a Muslim, reports said.
Basit was on his professional duties in Sonia Vihar area of Delhi when according to him a mob dragged, kicked, punched and slapped him only for being a Kashmiri Muslim.
The mob took videos of assault on him while he was instructed to say ‘Pakistan murdabad!’ and ‘Hindustan zindabad!’
“During this entire ordeal, which lasted for an hour and a half, I was surrounded at all times. People from the mob would angrily kick and slap me. I was continuously yelled at, and called various names, such as “mullah,” “Pakistani,” and “aatankwadi”—terrorist,” narrated Basit in Caravan.

IMPUNITY 

The impunity enjoyed by the armed forces operating in J&K  continue to deny justice to the victims of human rights abuses since 1989, the year when armed conflict erupted in Kashmir.  This month one of the notorious ‘encounter specialist’ cop was acquitted by a court, and the  General Security Forces Court in Srinagar has declared Commandant Randhir Kumar Birdi and Constable Lakhwinder Kumar of 68 BN BSF not guilty of the killing of Zahid Farooq Sheikh, a teenager who lived in Brein Nishat, during the 2010 uprising.  
· Court acquits ‘encounter specialist’ cop in 2013 ‘militancy for promotions’ racket
June 21: A court in Doda district has acquitted ‘encounter specialist’ cop Shiv Kumar Sharma alias Sonu and seven others of all charges in the 2013 Thathri police station blast case.
Principal District and Sessions Judge Bhaderwah M K Sharma acquitted the accused police officer and seven others, who were facing charges, after 15 important witnesses turned hostile.
Acquitting the officer, who was “instrumental in killing 68 militants in Doda-Kishtwar belt,” Sharma observed that as per charge-sheet police cited 93 witnesses to establish various charges against the accused person but after examination of 15 witnesses u/s 164-A Cr.P.C, majority of them including some police personnel and respectable people of the locality have turned hostile. They (witnesses) have stated that they were tortured, threatened and detained to make statements against the accused during the course of investigation.
Sharma observed that it is a case full of doubts in which benefit of doubt has to be accorded to the accused.
The court observed that police have not investigated the case properly and directed senior superintendent of police (SSP) Doda to hold enquiry into the matter.
The officer of Special Task Force officer was arrested on June 4, 2013. However, he got bail on August 1, 2014. The SI is recipient of several awards including the President's medal.
Sharma has killed dozens of militants in Doda, Bhaderwah, Kishtwar and Ramban. He rose upto the rank of sub-inspector from an SPO. He had been felicitated by then Deputy PM LK Advani and others.
CASE HISTORY:
As per police case, accused Shiv Kumar was in-charge SOG Kishtwar whereas other accused Mohammad Ayub the PSO of Shiv Kumar.
It is alleged that in order to earn out of turn promotion as well as monetary benefits, Shiv Kumar and his PSO along with accused Arshad Ahmed and Mohd. Arif Naik hatched a criminal conspiracy and chalked out a plan to engage two Kashmiri boys, namely Muzaffar Ahmed resident of Tahab Pulwama and Shahbaz of Pathipura Pulwama as militants with area of operation Kishtwar and Doda districts with a criminal design to carry out subversive activities in the area.
It is alleged that Shiv Kumar had planned to later eliminate both Muzaffar and Shahbaz and other accomplices by branding them as militants to achieve promotions. On 14.04.2013, Shiv Kumar called approver Abdul Rashid to Kishtwar and in the morning of 15.04.2013, Shiv Kumar and his PSO gave one bag containing one pistol alongwith magazine and five live cartridges, one AK 56 rifle alongwith 3 magazines and 143 cartridges and 3 Chinese grenades to approver Abdul Rashid and sent him to Kahara.
Abdul Rashid gave one pistol alongwith magazine and five cartridges to Mohammad Rafi and one AK-56 rifle alongwith 03 magazines and 143 cartridges to Akhtar Hussain and one Chinese grenade each to Shahbaz and Muzaffer (Kashmiri boys) and deputed them for given assignments.
On 20.04.2013, Abdul Rashid alongwith Mohammad Rafi reached Bhaderwah on the direction of Shiv Kumar to eliminate one Bansi Lal Gupta C/o Gupta Bakery, a prominent BJP leader of the area but the duo failed in their design.
On 27.04.2013, Abdul Rashid got one grenade from Mohammad Yaqoob and gave it to Mohammad Altaf. The accused Mohammad Altaf was directed to throw grenade on the cavalcade of Chief Secretary who was returning from Kishtwar or on a group of people or on PS Thathri.
Mohammad Altaf failed to throw grenade on the cavalcade of Chief Secretary and on public but succeeded in throwing it on police station Thathri in the intervening night of 27/28 April 2013, which did not explode.
During investigation, Mohd. Rafi was arrested who during interrogation narrated the whole story to the police.
During the course of investigation, the aforesaid weapons were recovered from the accused persons.
· Forces court finds commandant, constable not guilty of killing Zahid Farooq
June 29: A General Security Forces Court in Srinagar has declared Commandant Randhir Kumar Birdi and Constable Lakhwinder Kumar of 68 BN BSF not guilty of the killing of Zahid Farooq Sheikh, a teenager who lived in Brein Nishat, during the 2010 uprising. But the court held both Birdi and Kumar guilty in five other charges.
In its punishment, the court ordered that the rank and precedence of Commandant Randhir Kumar Birdi be taken away, and 5 years of his service be forfeited for the purpose of pension.
The other accused, Lakhwinder Kumar, 
was to forfeit 3 years of his service for the purpose of promotion and pension.
The case had moved from the court of Chief Judicial Magistrate Srinagar to the Forces Court after the Director-General (DG) of the BSF claimed the case. The proceedings initiated against the accused were set aside and became null and void after the case moved to the court.
Farooq Ahmed Sheikh, father of the slain teenager, said justice had not been done. “I am sorry for my son that I couldn’t bring his killers to justice. For the past seven years I had been fighting in every court but I have got no justice.
This was bound to happen as the AFSPA (Armed Forces Special Powers Act) enjoyed by these security forces in Kashmir gives them licence to kill and no one can hold them accountable for gruesome killings,” Sheikh said.
Though the government had appointed court commissions for compensating families of children killed by government forces during the 2010 uprising and had ordered a compensation of Rs 10 lakh and a job to the family, Sheikh said that his family had received none of this.
“Yes, compensation and job was ordered for five families of kids killed in 2010, but till now we have not received any such compensation. These are only fake promises to hoodwink people,” said Sheikh.
Sheikh was recently operated for a tumour. He said he misses his only son everyday and it is hard to survive without him. “I want to tell them (government forces) that justice will be meted to them and that day is not far,” he said.
Zahid, the killed boy, had gone out with his friends to play cricket on February 5, 2010, when a BSF contingent opened fire on the children, killing Zahid on the spot. Following Zahid’s killing, police, under intense public pressure, registered a case under FIR no 04/2010 under Sections 302/109, 201 of RPC at Police Station Nishat.
Locals re-named the square outside the Sheikh house as “Shaheed Zahid Chowk”. The name has been inscribed in green English letters on all walls and electric poles surrounding the square.

Jailed for killing two brothers, Ikhwani’s bail plea rejected third time

June 01: A court in Srinagar rejected bail application of a former member of pro-government militia Ikhwan accused of murdering three members of a family in a Pulwama village in 1996. The bail plea was rejected for the third time.
The main accused in the case Mushtaq Ahmed Ganai is on bail for the last several years on health grounds.
Additional public prosecutor Jahanara Shah argued before 3rd additional sessions judge, Naseer Ahmed Dar that the accused cannot be given bail as there is apprehension that he might run away from the state or he may try to influence victim’s family by threatening them.
After hearing arguments, court was satisfied and convinced that accused Mushtaq Ahmed Dar cannot be granted bail. The accused Mushtaq Ahmed Dar is languishing in central jail for the past 14 years with co-accused Bashir Ahmed, also an Ikhwani. One of the prime accused in this case Ghulam Nabi Wani is already dead while Mushtaq Ganaie is out on bail.
This episode is of 11/12 January, 1996 when a group of Ikhwani’s namely Khawja Commando Force were beating some local people at Keegam village in Pulwama without any reason.
After their continuous aggression on local people, some senior residents of the village approached district commissioner Pulwama to lodge a complaint.
But DC Pulwama at that time showed his inability to act against them citing that on ground level army has full powers and Ikhwan is their main wing. The DC suggested lodging complaint with army commander who was by chance visiting DC office for a meeting.
 	Eventually a meeting was arranged with the army General and four senior residents of the village went inside and lodged a complaint against Ikhwan group of inflicting torture and harassing local people.
After the residents left the DC office, the next morning a group of soldiers and some Ikhwanis cordoned off the house of one of the complainants namely master Ghulam Mohammad Sheikh. He was whisked away to a nearby village where he was ruthlessly tortured. He was released two hours later.
“I was beaten to pulp. They tied me with ropes and dragged me,” Sheikh said.
A few days later, the Ikhwanis and army again came to our house during the intervening night of 11 and 12 January 1996, narrated Sheikh. “We didn’t open the door. The raiders broke the widow and forced their entry. Three Ikhwanis asked me to present myself before their ‘commander’. I refused and told them to bring the commander to this room,” he said.
“On my refusal to leave the room, Mushtaq Ahmed called his commander Mushtaq Ganaie. As he entered the room he fired three bullets towards me,” Sheikh said.
Sehikh’s younger brother, a doctor by profession, came to his rescue but the Ikhwanis opened fire on him. He died instantly.  “Then my second brother was shot. The Ikhwanis fired indiscriminately and some bullets hit the limbs of my niece,” he said.
“After they left, neighbours came to our house and with Allah’s mercy not a single bullet had touched my body but I have lost my two brothers and younger daughter of my deceased brother was permanently disabled.” “After hue and cry over the carnage, the government provided security to our family but the Ikhwanis continued to threaten us.
No police station ready to lodge an FIR against the killers,” Sheikh said.
He said that in pursuit of justice he approached the home minister of India but it did not mitigate his problems. “On my return to Kashmir, I was advised not to go back to Pulwama village. I was given accommodation at Tulsibagh and finally after my relentless efforts, an FIR was lodged against the killers and they were arrested,” he said.
“I am fighting this case and I will fight it till the end. I am very disappointed with the judicial system. Even after 20 years, the case is not being decided despite clinching evidence against the killers,” he said.

UN rights body again seeks access in Kashmir

June 07: The United Nations human rights chief has again sought access in to the territory of Jammu and Kashmir, reports said.
Reiterating his request for “unconditional access” of his office to the troubled regions of “India-administered Jammu and Kashmir and Pakistan-administered Kashmir”, the UN righst body chief has warned that the denial of access will eventually lead to “various forms of remote monitoring” by his office and making the reports public.
India, at the peak of 2016 people’s uprising in Kashmir had denied grant of permission to such a mission. However, Pakistan had opened its gates on the condition that India allows the UN mission to visit J&K.
“Despite repeated high-level requests to India and Pakistan, permission for my staff to have unconditional access to both sides of the Line of Control in India-administered Jammu and Kashmir and Pakistan-administered Kashmir has still not been granted,” said Zeid Ra’ad al-Hussein in a statement.
Al-Hussein is the UN high commissioner for human rights. On Tuesday, he was addressing opening session of a three-week UN Human Rights Council (HRC).
“…and we continue to receive reports of increasing violence, civilian casualties, curfews and website blackout,” the UN high commissioner for human rights added.
The UN rights body chief had made the similar request to the nuclear-armed neighbours in the last HRC session in March.
“To achieve progress in human rights takes a great deal more than the flourish of a signature at the bottom of a document,” Al-Hussein said.
“As this council is aware, where the human rights situation appears critical, and where access is repeatedly denied to my office, the only option open to us may be to conduct various forms of remote monitoring. So long as refusals to enable access persist, I will be compelled to consider reporting publicly and regularly on their findings,” he added referencing the Kashmir situation among a host of other country situations including in Turkey, Venezuela, Democratic Republic of Congo and Crimea.

Govt orders magisterial probe into police assault on resident doctor

June 16: Divisional Commissioner (Div Com) Kashmir, Baseer Ahmad Khan ordered a magisterial inquiry into alleged police assault on a doctor.
According to an official order, Additional Deputy Commissioner Srinagar, Vikas Kundal has been appointed as Inquiry Officer to probe the allegation by a doctor that a SHO level police officer had thrashed him inside an Intensive Care Unit (ICU) of SMHS Hospital on Wednesday.
“Vikas Kundal, Additional Deputy Commissioner, Srinagar is hereby appointed as Inquiry Officer to conduct a magisterial inquiry into the allegations of manhandling and misbehavior with a resident doctor of SMHS Hospital by an attendant namely Isaac of a patient who happens to be a police officer,” said the order.
It said the inquiry should be completed within 15 days and report and recommendations submitted within the given time period.
Following the order, the doctors of Government Medical College (GMC), Srinagar associated hospitals called off their strike. They were on the strike for past three days.
According to the spokesperson of Resident Doctors’ Association, the strike has been called off upon the assurance of a magisterial inquiry into the incident of assault.
“We have decided to suspend the on-going strike for 14 days after deliberations with Divisional Commissioner,” he said.
A resident doctor, Dr Owais Ahmed was allegedly assaulted by a police official whose mother was being treated at the ICU of SMHS Hospital. 
Reports said the doctor was severely injured in the attack and suffered convulsions, following which he was admitted at Triage, a high dependency ward of the hospital.
On June 15, five GMC associated hospitals, Chest Disease Hospital, Psychiatric Diseases Hospital, Bone & Joint Hospital, Lala Ded Hospital, GB Pant Children Hospital had joined the strike affecting the patient care.

Bullets found in army man's bag at airport, detained

June 8: An Army jawan was detained at the Srinagar airport after two live bullets were recovered from his baggage during checking, police sources said.
	The army man was identified as Ravindra Kumar, a sepoy in Army's 22 Rashtriya Rifles unit posted at Sopore in north Kashmir's Baramulla district.
Kumar was detained by the police at the airport after two bullets of an AK assault rifle were recovered during an X-ray check.
	Kumar, a resident of Chhattisgarh, was going on leave and was to board an Air India flight.
He is under detention and is being questioned, the sources said. (PTI)

Militarization
· 
· Remilitarization’ in Shopian: Army sets up new camp, 2 more coming up 
June 20: Army has set up a new camp in south Kashmir’s Shopian district while two more such camps would be set up in its “volatile” areas in coming days.  Media reported that soldiers of Army’s 62 Rashtriya Rifles have set up a camp in a building of Public Health Engineering (PHE) department in Nagisharen village, nearly 10 kms from Behibagh army camp. 
“The village is located eight kilometers from the Kulgam district boundary. The 62 RR is sharing operational duties with Kulgam as well as Shopian district,” they said. 
Residents called the establishment of new army camp as “remilitarization.”
“It will affect the daily lives of several villages including Hajipora, Chakoora, Manzpora and Tachloo,” Shahid Ahmed, a resident of Nagisharen told this newspaper over phone.  
	A source said army bases are being set up in Shopian to “intensify” the anti-militancy operations in the district.
“Security agencies believe that some militant videos that went viral on social media were shot in south Kashmir areas, especially Shopian,” said a source in the Army. “In wake of videos and attacks, anti-militancy operations will be intensified in Shopian district and other areas of south Kashmir.”
Army officials said South Kashmir is “a bit hot. Lots of local militants are joining various outfits. We are trying to bring the situation under control. The operations are important and we need more bases.”
“Such bases will help us in ensuring vast area domination,” an official said.
Superintendent of Police Shopian, Ambarkar Shriram Dinkar refused to divulge any detail about the development. “I am not meant to disclose such details to media,” he said and disconnected the phone. 
Army’s Srinagar-based spokesman Colonel Rajesh Kalia said that he had no information about it. “This is routine re-deployment based on operation requirement,” he added.
·  CRPF grabs land in Bandipora Tehsil office
June 23: Revenue authorities here in North Kashmir’s Bandipora district have appealed government to act against what they called the officers of Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) encroaching upon the government land within the office premises.
The 3rd battalion of CRPF camped within Tehsil office complex has encroached upon major portion of the government land in Tehsil Office Complex affecting the officials work. 
The complex is under trooper's occupation since last 27 years.
“With every passing day CRPF is encroaching upon new patch of revenue land falling within the premises of office, they are putting up iron fencing on the land, “an official pleading anonymity said.
Officials said CRPF has unlawfully built two structures within office limits.
Tehsil Office in its written communication, a copy of which lies with Rising Kashmir has intimated Financial Commissioner Revenue and Divisional Commissioner Kashmir about “the land grab by CRPF in the Tehsil Office”. 
The communication reads “. . . .CRPF is encroaching upon the Departmental Land belonging to Revenue Department by way of erecting fencing, which is sheer violation of LRA/Rules. The fencing is carried out unlawfully and poses serious threat to overall functioning of the office. . . .”
Seeking direction-cum-action from higher ups, the communication reads “...kindly look into the matter and take immediate action in the instant matter to safeguard the departmental land from encroachment. . . ..”
The officials working in the office are feeling threatened amid growing encroachment by the CRPF within the office premises
In 1989, the troops of 81 Border Security Forces (BSF) occupied three government buildings including Thesildar’s Residence, Treasury Office and Patwar Khana which is still under troopers occupation.
From 1989 to 1999, the troopers of 81 and 17 battalion BSF were occupying the three official buildings of the complex which include Tehsil Office and Treasury Office.
From 1999 to 2008, 11th and 51 battalions of BSF were among the forces occupying the land. 
“We are being forced to work in a congested building, there is one Tehsildar and two Naib-Thesildars working in dilapidated six rooms which is insufficient accommodation for the three officers” said an officer whishing not to be named.
Hundreds of Revenue Officials are without any office after troopers turned their offices into dining hall cum kitchen. They are being forced to run their offices in rented private buildings in the market, away from their main office which badly hampers the routine official work.
“We were working in the occupied buildings till 1989 and were forcibly thrown out of the Patwar Khana in 1989 when troopers occupied our offices, “said a retired Revenue Official, adding: “It is essential for a revenue official to work in close proximity of the Thesildar”
A senior Revenue officer informed media that the growing encroachment within the premises was contained after intervention of Deputy Commissioner.
“We are now seeking decisive action on part of higher ups against encroachment,” he said.

Compensation for death in artillery firing fixed at Rs 2.5 lakh

June 19: The Jammu and Kashmir government has fixed Rs 2.5 lakh compensation against loss of life due to field firing and artillery practice.
The state government has also fixed Rs 2 lakh as compensation to a person suffering 100 percent disability from injuries incurred under the said circumstances.
Official documents with media reveal that Rs 1.5 lakh compensation would be provided to a person suffering 50-100 percent disability from injuries sustained in such situations.
A person suffering below 50 per cent disability would be given a compensation of Rs 1 lakh.
The government has also fixed compensation rates against the loss of livestock and crops. According to the revised rates, Rs 25,000 has been fixed against the death of a buffalo, mule and horse, Rs 20,000 for the loss of a cow or bull, while Rs 5,000 has been fixed as compensation for the death of sheep and goats.
For crop losses, concerned revenue authorities would assess the losses upon conducting a joint field survey with the army unit involved.
According to the notification, the compensation for the evacuation of villagers compelled to leave their home or adversely affected by restrictions imposed on their movement due to field firing practice would be Rs 151 per day and Rs 225 per, night, provided to every male and female above the age of 18. A further Rs 75 would be provided to children above the age of 12 but below 18.
Governor N N Vohra had written a letter in 2016 to former defence minister Manohar Parrikar and had requested him to enhance compensation payable to persons in the state affected by field firing and artillery practice.
The Governor had also pointed out that landowners have been complaining about the poor rates of compensation, which have been fixed 28 years ago.

Govt panel recommends Rs 4 lakh each for youth blinded by pellets

June 13: An official panel tasked with identifying pellet victims with grievous eye-injuries for compensation has recommended that the victims who have lost vision in both eyes be given Rs four lakh each. Officials also said a proposal for compensating those whose one eye has been “completely blinded” by pellet shotguns last year is also under “active consideration”.
	Media quoting its source reported that the divisional commissioner Kashmir-headed committee has so far finalized more than 16 cases for compensation.
	During the Budget Session in Jammu this year, the Chief Minister Mehbooba Mufti announced in the Assembly that jobs and free education would be provided to those blinded by pellets.
	To a question that the government had announced jobs for pellet victims, the source said: “There is no clear word yet. The committee had been asked to identify the pellet victims for compensation.”
	“The committee has recommended cash grant and some other form of compensation. The final decision lies with the government,” he said.
	The official said following long deliberations, the government might change its eligibility criteria (for compensation) and those who have ended up with 75 percent visual disability or whose one eye has been completely blinded could also be considered for compensation.
	“The committee has urged the government to employ a humane approach rather than a technical one,” the official said.
	He said all the cases of visual disability would be verified and certified by a divisional medical board.

Delhi sends 1 lac plastic bullets, stronger PAVA shells to Kashmir

June 20: Govt. of India has supplied government forces in J&K with more than one lakh plastic bullets to counter protests in the valley.
The Hindustan Times reported on June 20 that GOI has also supplied forces with PAVA (pelargonic acid vanillyl amide, an organic compound found in natural chilli pepper) shells that are more pungent, to increase their effectiveness. The new shells consist of oleoresin, which is more natural and pungent in comparison to the chemical-based PAVA shells.
Quoting unnamed home ministry sources, the report said that the supply of plastic bullets, considered less lethal than the pellet guns, has been made after an extensive trial with a few thousand such bullets.
“As part of the graded response to deal with violent crowds, the plastic bullets are being employed before using pellet guns,” the unnamed home ministry official was quoted by the report.
Plastic bullets can be fired from an AK-47 rifle only in a single shot mode, and not in burst mode, officials said.
Forces now have various options—including tear smoke shells, PAVA shells, rubber bullets that are fired from gas guns, plastic bullets and pellets guns—before actually opening fire.

Officially Stated
· 
· Militants snatched 89 rifles from forces in 1 year
June 02: A large number of weapons including AK-47s, self-loading rifles (SLR) and INSAS rifles, were snatched by militants in Jammu and Kashmir in last one year.
	As many as 36 SLRs, 58 SLR magazines and 1,000 SLR rounds, besides eight AK-47s, 15 of its magazines and 283 rounds were looted from security forces since May 2016, according to an estimate prepared by security agencies.
	Also, 39 INSAS rifles, 119 INSAS magazines, 380 INSAS bullet rounds, four carbines, 70 carbine rounds, one .303 rifle and one LMG were snatched by the militants.
	Home Ministry spokesperson Ashok Prasad said such incidents have taken place in the state as supply of arms and ammunition from Pakistan has dried up due to increased vigil along the border.
	The security agencies have also found that there has been an upswing in local youths joining militancy.
	Prasad attributed this phenomena to the lower incidents of infiltration from across the border.
	"There is no information that recruitment of local youths has gone up. But the groups are trying to recruit youths since very few militants have been successful in infiltrating into the valley," he said.
· J&K police consists of approx 75,000 officials: Govt
June 07: Jammu and Kashmir Police has a total strength of nearly 75,000 personnel and 224 police stations across the state, the Legislative Council was informed. 
At present, the overall posted strength of the Police Department is 74,913 and there are 224 police stations in the state, the government said in the Upper House in reply to a question by MLC Naresh Kumar Gupta. 
The government said apart from 224 police stations, 228 police posts also exist in the state. 
Out of 224 police stations, six are women police stations, 11 are in Railways, two CID, two belong to the Crime Branch, one tourist police station and seven anti-human trafficking units, the minister incharge of Home said in a written reply.
· Army Major Gogoi took a decision independently: Army Chief
June 08: Undeterred by criticism from politicians and commentators, Army Chief General Bipin Rawat on June 8 said use of human shield by the India Army is not a norm but individual officers are entitled to decide the tactic depending on circumstances. He also dismisses criticism that the Army is trigger-happy, but said the level of violence in Jammu and Kashmir needs to be brought down for any meaningful dialogue with stakeholders.
 “It (human shield) is not a general norm. As a practice it is not supported. But situations would dictate. Under the circumstances he (Major Leetul Gogoi) took a decision independently. He can't look back at that stage and wait for orders,” General Rawat told IANS in an interaction here at his office.
· Human shield incident circumstances-based: Army chief
June 17: Maintaining that the Army has a very good human rights record, Army Chief General Bipin Rawat said the incident of a Kashmiri man being used as a 'human shield' against stone pelters was circumstances-based and could not be made a standard operating procedure to deal with such situations.
He said "misinformation and disinformation" was being spread among the people of Jammu and Kashmir, compelling the younger generation to pick up arms against the security forces.
Commenting on Major Leetul Gogoi, who had tied the man to a jeep purportedly as a shield against stone pelters, Rawat said, "Everything and every action that we take is considering the nature of task that we are expected to carry out under the circumstances."
"But we are concerned about human rights and we make sure rights of people are not violated," he told reporters on the sidelines of an event in Hyderabad.
·  664 ‘stone throwers’ lodged at Juvenile Home since 2011
June 18: More than 664 juveniles booked on charges of stone-pelting have been lodged in Kashmir’s lone Juvenile Home at Harwan here since 2011, official data has revealed.
The data, compiled by Superintendent of the Juvenile Home, reads that 664 juveniles, involved in incidents of stone-pelting, have been received and bailed out from 23-9-2011 till 17-6-2017.
Interestingly, stone-pelting tops the list of categories of alleged offences for which the juveniles have been booked for and lodged at the Juvenile Home.  
Since 2011, 38 juveniles have been booked in murder cases, but 35 of them have been bailed out while three are serving punishment at the Juvenile Home at present, the data—copy of which is with Greater Kashmir—reads.
Similarly, 124 juveniles have been kept in the Juvenile Home in connection with cases related to alleged rape. Of these, 122 have been bailed out from time to time since 2011 while two are present lodged there.
173 juveniles have been booked for alleged theft, 13 for alleged possession of Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances (NDPS), 14 for “militancy-related issues”, 09 for negligent/ missing cases and one for phone/CD cases.
The data further reveals that 10 juveniles have been brought to the Juvenile Home for involvement in accident-related incidents, 12 for exam frauds, 53 for quarrel cases and three for arson.
“Nine people have been logged in Juvenile Home for kidnapping-related cases, nine for preventive majors/Awara, one for anti-religious cases and three for simple custody,” the data reads.
One minor has been booked for suicide related case, one for gambling and one for “giving poison to a person.” “Two people have been arrested for fire, two for explosive cases and four for anti-national act(s),” the data reads.
A total of 1,153 juveniles have been lodged in the Juvenile Home of whom 1,130 have been bailed out, three have escaped and 20 are at present serving punishment.
· In a year, Kashmir sees ‘100% increase’ in militancy incidents
June 18: During the past five months, at least 136 persons, including 27 civilians, have been killed in more than a 100 militancy-related incidents across Jammu and Kashmir, recording a steep increase in casualties than the previous year.
Official data accessed as per Greater Kashmir reveals that since January 2017 till June 12, 136 persons have been killed across the state. Among these, 27 are civilians, 81 militants and 28 government forces personnel including that of army, police and paramilitary forces.
“Some civilians were killed during protests at encounter sites while a few of them died in cross-border shelling,” the data reads. 
It reveals that there were 20 militancy-related incidents in January, nine in February, 20 in March, 23 in April, 21 in May and 11 till June 12.  “Last year, there were only 65 militancy-related incidents till June 2016,” the data reveals.
The data maintains that first two months of the current year recorded 43 killings. “At least 43 persons, including seven civilians, 10 security forces personnel and 26 militants, were killed in militancy-related incidents during the first 64 days of the current year (January 1, 2017, and March 5, 2017),” it states.
“During the corresponding period of 2016, such fatalities stood at 31—one civilian, seven security forces personnel, and 23 militants),” it reveals.
“When you compare the figures of the current year with the previous year, it proves 2017 is recording more than a 100 percent increase in militancy-related incidents,” said a senior police officer.
He said militancy in Kashmir is “intrinsically linked with infiltration of militants from across the border, both via the International Border as well as Line of Control.” “Less infiltration eases out things for counter-insurgency forces in hinterland,” he said.
“There is a multi-pronged approach to contain militancy,” the officer said, adding that activities of people involved in militancy are being “monitored regularly.” “Efforts are underway for more synergy between different security forces to tackle militancy,” he said. “The forces have been asked to ensure that nobody disrupts peace.”


	Date
	Armed forces
	Militants
	Civilians

	June 01
	-
	2
	1

	June 02
	-
	-
	-

	June 03
	2
	-
	-

	June 04
	-
	-
	-

	June 05
	-
	4
	-

	June 06
	-
	-
	1

	June 07
	-
	3
	-

	June 08
	1
	3
	-

	June 09
	-
	6
	-

	June 10
	-
	1
	-

	June 11
	-
	-
	-

	June 12
	-
	-
	-

	June 13
	-
	-
	-

	June 14
	-
	-
	-

	June 15
	2
	-
	-

	June 16
	7
	3
	3

	June 17
	-
	-
	1

	June 18
	-
	-
	-

	June 19
	-
	-
	-

	June 20
	-
	-
	-

	June 21
	-
	2
	-

	June 22
	2
	4
	1

	June 23
	1
	-
	-

	June 24
	1
	-
	-

	June 25
	-
	2
	-

	June 26
	-
	-
	-

	June 27
	-
	-
	-

	June 28
	-
	-
	-

	June 29
	-
	-
	-

	June 30
	-
	-
	-

	Total
	16
	30
	7

	IN TOTO
	53 KILLINGS



Chronology of incident
June 01: Two HM militants were killed and two armed forces personnel were injured in an encounter between them in Sopore area of Baramulla district. The slain militants, both locals, were identified as Basharat Ahmad Sheikh of Bomia, Sopore and Ajaz Ahad Mir of Brathkalan, Sopore.  A General Engineering Reserve Force (GREF) labourer was killed while two others including a BSF man injured in cross LOC shelling on forward posts along the LoC in Krishnagati sector in Poonch and Rajouri districts of Jammu and Kashmir. 
June 02: As many as fifteen persons were injured in clashes at various places across Kashmir valley. Six civilians were targeted by pellets in Lal Chowk in south Kashmir’s Anantnag district.  
June 03: Two army soldiers were killed and four others were injured when militants attacked an army convoy on Srinagar-Jammu highway near Qazigund area in Anantnag district of south Kashmir. While five persons sustained pellet injuries during clashes amid shutdown in Anantnag town. In cross border shelling two civilians including a young girl were injured along LOC inPoonch district in Jammu.    
June 04: Anantnag district observed shut down to protest the police forces excesses. 
June 05: Four ‘foreign’ militants, their identity not yet known, were killed in Sumbal town of north Kashmir’s Bandipora district in the wee hours, police said. The four militants had tried to storm a 45BN Central Reserve Police Forces (CRPF) headquarters with the aim “to cause fatal causalities to the CRPF,” an official said.
June 06: An 18-year-old youth was killed when armed forces opened fire on people protesting against a cordon and search operation here in south Kashmir’s Shopian district. Many others were injured. The slain civilian has been identified as Adil Farooq Magray, son of Farooq Ahmad, resident of Balpora village in Shopian district.
June 07: The army claimed to have killed three militants while foiling an infiltration bid along the Line of Control in Machil sector of Kupwara district. The identity of the slain militants were not ascertained. While amid widespread student protests, government suspended classes at the Islamic University of Science and Technology while students from Anantnag colleges were barred from entering the college premises. Four girls were among 12 students injured in Pampore where students, protesting the killing of a youth during a cordon and search operation in Shopian on June 6, blocked Srinagar-Jammu highway. Clashes were also reported from Shopian area of north Kashmir where a boy Adil was laid rest.
June 08: Three unidentified militants and one army soldier were killed during an encounter in Nowgam sector of Kupwara district in north Kashmir.  While militants escaped the army cordon in Pahalgam village.  
June 09: Six unidentified militants believed to be from LET, army claimed, were killed along the Line of Control (LoC) in Uri sector of Baramulla district which was a “fidayeen” group of the Lashkar-e-Toiba militant outfit. 
June 10: One unidentified militant was killed, army claimed, while foiling an infiltration bid along LOC in Gurez sector of Bandipora district. A 45-year-old civilian was injured when militants attacked armed forces on Srinagar – Jammu highway in south Kashmiri. The injured has been identified as Meenu Arif.    
June 11: One SOG personnel was critically injured in a militant attack in Imam Sahab, Shopian in south Kashmir 
June 12: Two CRPF soldiers suffered minor injuries in a grenade blast hurled by the militants on their camp at Tral area of south Kashmir. While intense clashes occurred in Marhama village in Ananatnag during a cordon and search operation conducted by the armed forces. In another incident, three students were injured by teargas canister fired by the police on protesting students near govt. degree college Shopian. In cross LOC firing and mortar shelling along Krishna Ghati in Poonch over 12 'houses were damaged.  
June 13: In three back-to-back attacks within three hours in south Kashmir, nine CRPF soldiers were injured, at least 3 of them critically, after militants carried out three grenade attacks in Pulwama district, including in Tral, Padgampora and main town Pulwama. All the injuries were reported from the attack in Tral where militants targeted the CRPF’s 180 Bn camp in Ladiyar area on the outskirts of the main town. In another incident, two policemen were injured and four rifles were snatched from them as militants attacked a police post guarding a retired Justice’s house in Anchidora area of main town Anantnag.
June 14: Massive protests were reported from south Kashmir’s Kulgam district against the army highhandedness. The army, people alleged, damaged peoples’ properties during night time. While clashes erupted in Pulwama town after students of Degree College and HSS Pulwama pelted stones on the police station Pulwama. 
June 15: Two policemen were killed and one injured while another cop was injured in two separate attacks in Srinagar and Kulgam. While a youth was seriously injured when personnel of Sashastra Sema Bal (SSB) allegedly opened fire on a group of youth who threw stones at their vehicles in Rangreth area on Srinagar outskirts. A witness said a few boys pelted stones at SSB cavalcade near Rangreth chowk this evening. “The convoy remained stuck on the route for half-an hour,” he said. Another witness said the SSB men first fired teargas shells “but when stone-pelting continued, they fired a few shots in the air.” In another incident, unidentified gunmen shot at and inured a woman in Katrasoo village of Kulgam district, police said. The woman was identified as Suraya daughter of Muhammad Sharif Bhat of Katrasoo. “Some gunmen barged into the house of Bhat and shot at Suraya in her leg,” a police official said.
June 16: Two civilians were killed, both fired in chest, and over 30 injured near an encounter site in Arwani area of South Kashmir’s Kulgam district. The deceased civilian were identified as Mohammad Ashraf, 22, s/o Ghulam Hassan Khar of Kharpora, Arwani, Kulgam and Ehsan Mushtaq, 8th class student, s/o Mushtaq Ahmad Dar of Shamsipora, Qaimoh,Kulgam. While a youth injured in armed forces firing in Rangreath in Srinagar outskirts on June 15 succumbed to his injuries.  Three militants belonged to LeT were killed in an encounter with armed forces in Arwani village in south Kashmir. The slain militants were identified as Junaid Mattoo, Nasir Wani and Adil Mushtaq. In a militant attack, six policemen including a SHO were killed in a militant attack at Acabal area in south Kashmir. In Bandipora two civilians were injured when army opened fire on their car. While an army claimed its soldier was killed in Pakistani firing in Nowshera sector in Jammu. 
June 17: A BJP activist who was injured after unknown gunmen opened fire upon him in south Kashmir’s Pulwama district late last night succumbed to his injuries, police said. Ajaz Ahmed Malik (24) son of Ali Mohammad, resident of Arrubagh Pinglana in Pulwama who received bullet injuries after unknown gunmen opened fire on him near his residence succumbed to his injuries at Srinagar hospital, a senior police officer told media He succumbed to his injuries late Saturday night. In Budgam, suspected militant attacked CRPF. 
June 18: Militants attack an army convoy in Bijbehara in south Kashmir. The forces retaliated the militant attack. However, there was no causality. 
June 19: Army resorted to aerial firing during a cordon in Mahend village of Bijbehara. Army at around 7:30 pm arrived in the village and laid a cordon around Astan Mohalla locality. “Soon after the cordon was laid army fired several gun shots in air creating panic among the people,” locals told media. In Pulwama, a civilian was injured after army men allegedly opened fire in Drabgam village. The injured civilian, identified as Altaf Ahmad Zargar of Aglar village. 
June 20: Militants attacked a CRPF camp in Tral Bala area of south Kashmir’s Pulwama district with grenades and gunfire. There were no reports of casualties till the filing of this report. Meanwhile, army soldiers on fired several warning shots in Churath village of Qazigund following an altercation with the locals, which morphed into stone pelting. According to reports the altercation between locals and soldiers was triggered after an army vehicle hit a civilian.
June 21:  Two militants of HM were killed in an encounter with armed forces in Pazalpora area of Sopore in Baramulla district. The slain militants were identified as Gulzar Ahmad Lone alias Ibrahim of Brath, Sopore and Basit AhmadMir alias Tahir of Andergam,  Pattan. While militants mange to escape an armed forces cordon in Hajin area of district Bandipora. An army officer reported to be injured in a gunfight with militants in Pulwama district.  In Srinagar, as per reports, militants managed to give slip to the armed forces in Batamaloo area of Srinagar district.   
June 22: Three LeT militants were killed in an encounter with armed forces in Kakapora area of Pulwama district. The slain militants have been identified as Majid Mir son of Abdul Hameed of Railway Colony Kakapora, Shaakir Ahmad Gugjoo son of Bashir Ahmad of Main Bazaar Kakapora and Sheeraz Ahmad Dar son of Muhammad Sultan of Aganzipora Awantipora. Following the encounter armed forces killed a civilian identified as Tauseef Ahmad Wani of Tengpuna, Pulwama and injured sixty six persons in Kakapora area. While army claimed it had killed an unidentified militant in Keran sector in Kupwara district and two army men were killed when attacked by Border Action Team of Pakistan army along LOC in Poonch.
June 23: An officer of J&K police was lynched by a mob outside historic Jamia Masjid in Downtown Srinagar during Shab-e-Qadr, the night of power, drawing massive outrage from political and social circles. Two persons have been arrested in connection with the officer’s killing while the state police chief vowed to punish the culprits.  The deceased officer was identified as deputy superintendent of police, Muhammad Ayub Pandit, of Nowpora, Srinagar. While clashes erupted in Anantnag town, after Friday prayers, around a dozen persons were injured after forces responded with smoke shells and sun grenades. 
June 24: A Sub Inspector of CRPF was killed and two troopers were injured when militants attacked their vehicle in Pantha Chowk area in outskirts of Srinagar. 
June 25: Army and police claimed that it had killed two foreign militants, who had attacked the CRPF on June 24 and had taken refuge in DPS School in Patha Chowk, in the operation two army soldiers were also injured.   
June 26: Reports of protest came from various places across Kashmir after Idd prayers. 
June 27: Three militants had escaped a cordon after locals threw stones at troops in Soaf hamlet of Kokernag in south Kashmir’s Anantnag district. It was reported that the troops had launched a CASO in the native village of Lashkar-e-Toiba commander Bashir Lashkari, following inputs about the presence of at least three militants there.
June 28: Armed forces were attacked with stones when they were withdrawing from Dawalatpora area of Chadoora in central Kashmir on after calling off a cordon and search operation (CASO).
June 29: Armed forces claimed to have averted a major militant attack by defusing two improvised explosive devices (IEDs) in Pulwama.
June 30: A middle aged woman was injured in cross border shelling in Uri sector in Baramulla.  The victim was identified as Yar Ali Khan, hit by splinters when she was working outside her home in Behak along the Line of Control (LoC). While curfew-like restrictions remained in force in parts of down town areas of Srinagar on Friday to foil protests called by the separatist leadership. Authorities also disallowed Friday congregational prayers at historic Jamia Masjid for second consecutive week.
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